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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) TGF-D-00014 
PHARMACEUTICAL PRODUCTS
Schedule H
Integrity Due Diligence (IDD) Questionnaire

Bidder Information Form
Information required by the Global Fund’s Ethics Office

Proposed Engagement:

The Global Fund requires details of all Bidders. If the Bidder is a consortium or group of organisations, this document needs to be submitted for all of the organisations in the consortium who may provide services to the Global Fund in relation to the Proposed Engagement.


1. Bidder Organisation

1a. Basic Information

	Organization name
	

	Acronym or short name
	

	Address
	

	Telephone
	

	Name of Primary Contact
	

	Title of Primary Contact
	

	Email of Primary Contact
	



1b. Legal Status

	Legal type of Entity
	

	Country of Incorporation
	

	Registration number
	

	Date of establishment
	






2. Organisational Structure, Ownership And Control

2a. All Bidders: Attach an organogram showing ownership structure for the legal entity submitting the proposal, up to and including all beneficial owners holding >5%.

2b. Is the Bidder organization wholly or partially owned or controlled by any government, government agency or any government-owned or government-controlled company?

	Yes
	No

	If yes, describe the type and manner of government ownership or control.

	
Provide the name of the Government or relevant government body and describe the extent of the Government agency interest in the Bidder.




2c.i Complete the ownership information in table below 
 
	Instructions for 2c.i
· Identify any entities or individuals holding more than 5% interest. In turn, where those shareholders are entities, identify any entities or individuals holding >10% interest. Continue ‘up the ownership chain’ until you have identified all natural persons with a >5% legal or beneficial ownership interest in the Bidder. These are considered the Ultimate Beneficial Owners of your organisation. 



List all persons with a direct ownership stake of over >5% in the Bidder:

	Name
	Date of Birth (DoB) or registration date
	Nationality or country of incorporation
	% Ownership

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	



List all Ultimate Beneficial Owners which ultimately control the entities listed above:

	Name
	Date of Birth (DoB) or registration date
	Nationality or country of incorporation
	% Ownership

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	




Additional information/comments regarding Bidder’s beneficial ownership:

	













2d.i. Foundations, non-profits, multilaterals, trusts and other entities receiving economic backing on a non-ownership basis: In the table below, identify all your major donors/beneficiaries (where they donate 10% or more of your annual budget), including government agencies. 

	Name
	Address
	Nationality
	% Of total funding

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	






3. Governance and management (All Bidders)

3a. Provide an organogram showing the governance and management structure of your organisation, from CEO ‘downwards’ two levels. If you have a dual governance structure (e.g. a management and a supervisory board), or a more complicated structure, provide as many charts as required.


3b. In the table below, identify the following: Individuals who exercise significant management control or influence over the activities of the Bidder, including its principals, directors, board members and trustees. At minimum, identify the Chair, CEO, CFO and COO of your organization. Attach a resume/CV or other description of qualifications and experience for each individual listed below.

	Given names 
	Family name
	DoB
	Nationality
	Title

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	




3c. In the table below, identify the following: All individuals who will have management control over the delivery of products or services to the Global Fund or Global Fund’s grant recipients on behalf of the Bidder. Attach a resume/CV or other description of qualifications and experience for each individual listed.

	Given names 
	Family name
	DoB
	Nationality
	Title

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	





4. Disclosure of Interests  -- Individual

4a. Employment related to the Global Fund: To the best of your knowledge, are any of the individuals identified in 3b and 3c a former employee of the Global Fund, or of any of the Global Fund’s Partners, grant recipients or suppliers?

	Yes
	No

	If yes, provide details below or on a separate page, if necessary:

	










4b. Ownership interests: Do any of the individuals identified in 3b and 3c have an ownership interest (above 10%), or play a leadership role, in any other private or listed companies, government agencies, NGOs or international organisations?

	Yes
	No

	If yes, provide details below or on a separate page, if necessary:

	Name of principal
	Role 
	Name of an organisation
	Address 
	Organisation’s  activities

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	



4c. Government/political roles: Do any of the individuals identified in 3b and 3c serve in any type of governmental or political capacity in addition to or as part of their employment with the Bidder? 

	Yes
	No

	If yes, provide details below or on a separate page, if necessary:

	









4d. Financial interests: Do any of the individuals identified in 3b and 3c, or any of their immediate family members, have any financial interest in the work of the Global Fund? 

	Yes
	No

	If you have responded “yes”, a) provide details in the box below sufficient for the Global Fund to evaluate the situation, and b) present a proposed mitigation plan/arrangement for consideration by the Global Fund. Details may include, but is not limited to, the following: 
· For a role held at an organization, list the name of the organization, the role held at the organization (such as employee, consultant, or Board member), the work performed in the role, and the dates during which the role was held.   
· For an ownership interest, describe the nature and amount of the interest owned, the duration for which the interest has been held, and any other relevant information.  


	














4e. Audit, investigation, regulatory or other legal review: Have any of the individuals identified in 3b and 3c, or any of their immediate family members:
· had a professional relationship with an organization subject to a diagnostic review, audit, investigation, or similar activity by the Global Fund’s Office of the Inspector General, or;
· been personally subject to an investigation by the Office of the Inspector General, or;
· been personally subject to an investigation by any other international organization or regulatory authority?

	Yes
	No

	If you have responded “yes”, describe relevant information in the box below, including, as applicable: 
· The organization involved;  
· The role and tile held (such as employee, consultant, or Board member), who the role was held by and the dates when the role was held; 
· The work performed, and whether the role involved working on, managing, or overseeing matters involving the Global Fund;
· The investigating authority (whether the Office of the Inspector General or another agency); 
· The focus of the  investigation or other action; and  
· The outcome or resolution of the investigation or other action (such as findings of fraud or misuse of funds).
· Present a proposed mitigation plan/arrangement for consideration by the Global Fund.

	










4f. Legal disputes: Have any of the individuals identified in 3b and 3c or any of their immediate family members been involved in a legal dispute with the Global Fund or its grant recipients, or in any other legal dispute that could have a real or perceived effect on your work under this RFP? 

	Yes
	No

	If you have responded “yes”, a) provide details in the box below on the nature of the dispute, the parties involved, and, as applicable, the status of the dispute or how and when the dispute was resolved.  Also b) present a proposed mitigation plan/arrangement for consideration by the Global Fund as necessary.

Note:  This question is intended to only address legal disputes that could have a real or perceived effect on your ability to work with the best interests of the Global Fund in mind.  Therefore, any legal issues you may have experienced relating to your gender, sexual orientation, political beliefs, disease status, activities as a sex worker or drug user, or activities associated with advocacy for social, political or human rights issues do not need to be disclosed here.  For the legal disputes disclosed here, you may provide any background you deem relevant, such as your view on the legitimacy of the claim (for example, its basis in fact; whether it was motivated on political grounds). 

	










4g. Prohibited practices: Have any of the individuals identified in 3b and 3c been suspended from doing business, been charged with or been implicated in allegations of fraud, bribery or other significant crime or other forms of Prohibited Practices as defined in the Global Fund Policy to Combat Fraud and Corruption (PCFC) in any country?

	Yes
	No

	If yes, provide complete details below 

	












5. Disclosure of Interests – Organisational
5a. Sources of funds: List all organisations or persons, if any, that provided over 10% of your total annual revenue in the last three years. For entities which receive donations or grants as the main source of operating funds, list the donors, if any, that have contributed over 10% of the total receipts in the last three years:

	Client or donor name 
	Activities provided
	Volume of funds derived from this source, US$
	Approximate % within the Bidder’s total revenue

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	




5b. Prior engagements: Over the last five years, identify all individual engagements in jurisdictions eligible for allocations from the Global Fund[footnoteRef:1] in which your organization (including its subsidiaries, joint ventures, partnerships and consortium members) received or disbursed at least 100,000 USD in any of the following roles: [1:  As detailed in Eligibility List 2021, accessible at https://www.theglobalfund.org/media/10660/core_eligiblecountries2021_list_en.pdf] 

1. A supplier, vendor, consultant, assistance provider, advisor, donor, sponsor, agent or partner to implementers, partners, recipients or suppliers of the Global Fund, regardless of whether the work you did related to Global Fund-financed programs;
1. A supervisor, evaluator, auditor, assessor, reviewer or any other provider of assurance or control services in the context of Global Fund-financed programs, regardless of whether the services were provided for the Global Fund, or any other entity; 
1. A capacity builder, technical assistance provider, procurement agent, project manager or general contractor to any government body or state-controlled entity.

5c. Detailed disclosure: For each of the engagements listed in 5b answer the following questions, with no more than four sentences for each sub-section. For each answer that calls for identifying persons or entities, state the nature of their relationship to the Global Fund, to the best of your abilities:
0. What did the work entail?
0. Who requested the work? How was your organization selected for it? Who was the contract with?
0. Who are the main recipients of goods and services provided? 
0. Who provided the financing for the work?
0. What was the approximate value of the work done (to nearest USD 100,000)?
0. Dates of when the work done? If ongoing or planned, what is the anticipated end date?
0. Which countries is/was the work done in?
0. Would any individuals involved in this work be also involved in servicing the work under the current proposal? If so, who and how?
0. Were any government entities, e.g. a ministry of health or its agencies, involved in commissioning, receiving, supporting or supervising the work? Please provide detail.
0. In your opinion, does the work cause an actual, potential or perceived conflict of interest? Why/why not? 
0. If there appears to be an actual, potential or perceived conflict of interest, please set out a mitigation plan for consideration by the Global Fund.
This submission should be made in spreadsheet form as a separate file.
6. Bidder’s Ethics And Integrity Programme

The Global Fund defines integrity risk as the risk that a counterparty—either an entity or an individual—
1) May be engaged in Prohibited Practices defined in the Global Fund Policy to Combat Fraud and Corruption;
2) May possess a conflict of interest that increases the counterparty’s likelihood of engaging in Prohibited Practices or skews the counterparty’s decision-making against the best interests of the Global Fund’s Mission of eliminating the three diseases; 
3) May espouse views or engage in practices counter to the Global Fund’s Values and Mission; or otherwise may expose the Global Fund to reputational risk, including for reasons of sexual exploitation and abuse, all forms of harassment, human rights violations, environmental, labour, and other safeguarding reasons.  


6a. Codes of Conduct, Conflict of Interest and Anti-corruption policy: Does the Bidder have a code of conduct and/or conflict of interest and anti-corruption compliance policies applicable to the Bidder and its suppliers? If yes, list all relevant policies in the table below and attach copies of policies and codes currently in force.

	Yes
	No

	List all relevant policies and codes below or on a separate page, if necessary.

	













6b. Does the Bidder have policies that cover the below areas for the Bidder, its employees and its suppliers. If yes, list all relevant policies in the table below and attach copies of policies and codes currently in force:  

	Prohibiting harassment, bullying, sexual harassment, exploitation and abuse 
	Yes
	No

	Supporting and respecting the protection of internationally proclaimed human rights and ensuring that the Bidder is not complicit in human rights abuses
	Yes
	No

	Upholding the freedom of association and the effective recognition of the right to collective bargaining
	Yes
	No

	Supporting the elimination of all forms of forced and compulsory labour
	Yes
	No

	Supporting the effective abolition of child labour

	Yes
	No

	Supporting the elimination of discrimination in respect of employment and occupation
	Yes
	No

	Support environmental sustainability (including through a precautionary approach to environmental challenges; undertaking initiatives to promote greater environmental responsibility; and encouraging the development and diffusion of environmentally friendly technologies)
	Yes
	No

	Competition and anti-trust law
	Yes
	No

	Health and safety at work, and among key suppliers
	Yes
	No

	Compliance with trade sanctions and regulatory actions
	Yes
	No

	List all relevant policies and codes below or on a separate page, if necessary.

	












6c. Implementation: Describe what measures does the Bidder take to ensure that the above policies, especially with regard to conflict of interest and anti-corruption, are operational and effective? Describe measures such as training, reviews, audits, having a whistleblowing hotline and any others that provide assurance over the above policies, providing statistics as available

	List all relevant facts and statistics below or on a separate page, if necessary.

	












6d. Examples of case management: Provide three examples of successful incident management your organization has completed in the last five years. Incidents may include cases of alleged, suspected or confirmed conflicts of interest, corruption or any of the topics listed in 6b.
 
1. These should relate to the jurisdictions and scope of work relevant for this RFP;
1. For each example, clearly state how the incident was identified, what it entailed, what risk it posed, at what level of seniority did it occur, how was it mitigated, and what was the impact of that mitigation; &
1. If your organization has not identified any incidents, state accordingly and do not provide any examples.

	
	Describe the examples on a separate page, if necessary.

	














7. Potential Conflicts Of Interest  - Declaration
All parties/organizations submitting a proposal in response to this Request for Proposal are required to disclose the existence of any perceived, potential or actual conflict of interest relating to the proposed work and/or country/countries in question.
Failure to fully disclose any perceived, potential or actual conflict of interest in a timely manner could lead the Global Fund to reject a proposal or to the termination of any contract with the Global Fund related to the Proposed Engagement if failure to disclose is detected later on.
The Global Fund defines conflict of interest as a situation in which a Supplier, Bidder, or an affiliate[footnoteRef:2] or a sub-contractor (if any) of a Bidder, has interests (financial, organizational, reputational or otherwise) that would or may appear to make it difficult for a Bidder to fulfill its obligations to the Global Fund in the proposed role in the Proposed Engagement in an objective, independent and professional manner, or a situation in which it is reasonable to foresee that such an interest would arise.   [2:  “Affiliate” means a business concern, individual or other entity that, directly or indirectly: (i) controls or can control a Bidder; (ii) is controlled by, or can foreseeably be controlled by, a Bidder; or (iii) along with a Bidder, is controlled by, or can foreseeably be controlled by, the same third party.
] 



7a. Conflict of interest declaration: To the best of your understanding, do any of the individuals identified in 3a and 3b have any actual, potential and/or perceived personal conflict of interest situations that may incur if the Bidder is awarded a contract to provide services to the Global Fund as per the Proposed Engagement (if conflicting financial relationships have existed in the past or currently exist, provide all relevant information pertaining to such relationships over the last 5 years. Also describe any significant work performed or relationships prior to that period if it was of an on-going nature which could present an actual, potential or perceived conflict of interest in the present day).

	Yes
	No

	If yes, provide complete details below. If you have responded “yes”, a) provide details in the box below (or on a separate page, if necessary) sufficient for the Global Fund to evaluate the situation and b) present a proposed mitigation plan/arrangement for consideration by the Global Fund.

	















7b. Any other matters affecting objectivity and independence: Is there anything else not captured in the questions above that could affect the Bidder’s objectivity or independence in the performance of your duties in the Proposed Engagement, or in your opinion, the perception by others of the Bidder’s objectivity and independence?

	Yes
	No

	If you have responded “yes”, a) provide details in the box below (or on a separate page, if necessary) sufficient for the Global Fund to evaluate the situation and b) present a proposed mitigation plan/arrangement for consideration by the Global Fund.

	















8. Business References
The Global Fund plans to take up references. Provide details below of those who would be prepared to be contacted by the Global Fund.

8a. List three of the Bidder’s former or current clients below:

	Organisation’s name
	Person of Contact (PoC)
	PoC’s phone number
	PoC’s email address

	1.
	
	
	

	2.
	
	
	

	3.
	
	
	




8b. List three of the Bidder’s former or current business partners below:

	Organisation’s name
	Person of Contact (PoC)
	PoC’s phone number
	PoC’s email address

	1.
	
	
	

	2.
	
	
	

	3.
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